Open Agenda

Council Assembly
Annual meeting
Saturday 21 May 2022
11.00 am
Southwark Cathedral, London Bridge, SE1 9DA
Councillors are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council to consider the
business contained herein

Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an elderly
dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an
allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building access,
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site:
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Virginia Wynn-Jones, Andrew Weir on 020 7525 7055 or 020 7525 7222 or email: virginia.wynnjones@southwark.gov.uk; andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk; constitutional.team@southwark.gov.uk

Date: 13 May 2022

Council Assembly
Annual meeting
Saturday 21 May 2022
11.00 am
Southwark Cathedral, Montague Close, London Bridge SE1 9DA

Order of Business
Item No.
1.

Title

ELECTION OF THE MAYOR
To elect a Mayor for the municipal year 2022-23
PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

2.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS
2.1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.
2.2. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE
CABINET OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE
To receive any announcements from the Mayor, members of the
cabinet or the chief executive.
2.3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE
MAYOR DEEMS URGENT
In special circumstances an item of business may be added to an
agenda within seven working days of the meeting.
2.4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

Page No.

Item No.

Title

2.5. MINUTES

Page No.

1 - 24

To approve as a correct record the open minutes of the ordinary
and extraordinary council assembly meetings held on 23 March
2022.
3.

REPORT(S) FOR DECISION FROM THE CABINET
3.1. APPOINTMENT OF LEADER AND EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 2022-2023

25 - 30

Council assembly is asked to appoint a leader of the council and
note the appointment by the leader of cabinet members, any
deputy cabinet members, the establishment of any cabinet
committees and the leader’s report on the delegation of executive
functions.
3.2. ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMITTEES, PANELS AND RELATED
MATTERS 2022-2023

31 - 44

Council assembly is asked to establish committees, panels and
related matters for the coming municipal year 2022-23 and to
appoint up to three representatives to attend the Local Government
Association General Assembly.
3.3. NOMINATIONS TO LONDON COUNCILS COMMITTEES,
GREATER LONDON EMPLOYMENT FORUM, BOROUGH
LEAD MEMBERS, LONDON LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION
SCHEME (LGPS) COMMON INVESTMENT VEHICLE (CIV) LTD
AND LONDON COUNCILS LIMITED 2022-23
Council assembly is asked to agree nominations to the London
Councils committees, the Greater London Employment Forum and
London Council Limited.
Council assembly is also asked to nominate borough lead
members for the following areas: Children and Young People /
Safeguarding and Schools, Skills and Employment; Housing and
Regeneration; Health, Social Care and Adult Services; Arts/Culture,
Tourism, Port and Leisure; Crime and Public Protection; Economic
Development / Business; and Planning / Infrastructure /
Development.

3.4. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT
2021-22
To follow

45 - 51

Item No.

4.

Title

AMENDMENTS
Any member of the council may submit an amendment to a report or
motion on the agenda. The amendments will be circulated to all members
in a supplemental agenda.
ANY OPEN ITEMS IDENTIFIED AS URGENT AT THE START OF THE
MEETING
EXCLUSION MOTION (IF NECESSARY)
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
council wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:
“That under the access to information procedure rules of the
Southwark constitution, the public be excluded from the meeting for
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in section(s) 1 – 7 of
paragraph 10.4 of the procedure rules.”
PART B – CLOSED BUSINESS
ANY CLOSED ITEMS IDENTIFIED AS URGENT AT THE START OF
THE MEETING

Date: 13 May 2022

Page No.

1

Agenda Item 2.5

Council Assembly
(Ordinary meeting)
MINUTES of the Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) held on Wednesday 23 March
2022 at 7.00 pm at Council Offices, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT:
The Worshipful the Mayor for , Councillor Barrie Hargrove (Chair)
Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Victor Chamberlain
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor James Coldwell
Councillor Stephanie Cryan
Councillor Helen Dennis
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor William Houngbo
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall
Councillor Richard Livingstone

Councillor Alice Macdonald
Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor James McAsh
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor Adele Morris
Councillor Graham Neale
Councillor Margy Newens
Councillor David Noakes
Councillor Damian O'Brien
Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Leo Pollak
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Catherine Rose
Councillor Jane Salmon
Councillor Martin Seaton
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Michael Situ
Councillor Charlie Smith
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Kath Whittam
Councillor Bill Williams
Councillor Kieron Williams
Councillor Ian Wingfield

1
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

2

1.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1.1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Jack Buck, Gavin Edwards, Sirajul
Islam, Peter John, Nick Johnson, Lorraine Lauder (on long term sickness absence),
Rebecca Lury, Victoria Olisa and Dan Whitehead.
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Anood Al-Samerai.

1.2

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
The leader of the council, Councillor Kieron Williams, expressed his regret that Eleanor
Kelly, the chief executive, is retiring, and offered his thanks for her service.
He also confirmed the council’s support for the people of Ukraine, and his sadness in
hearing the events there over the last month.
Councillor Hamish McCallum made a statement in recognition of Eleanor Kelly’s work and
career.
Councillor Victor Chamberlain made a statement in support of the people of Ukraine.
The Mayor of Southwark, Councillor Barrie Hargrove, moved a motion to bring Motion 5,
Southwark’s support for Ukraine, forward to after Motion 1. This was seconded by
Councillor Stephanie Cryan, put to the vote, and agreed.
At this point, the programme motion was agreed:
The order of business and timings for the evening will be as follows:

Time
19:00 – 19:20
19:20 – 19:30

Business
1. Preliminary business and announcements
2.2 Public question time
 Emma Dobinson

19:30 – 20:30

Themed debate
3.1 Community Evidence
(20 minutes –  Tustin Community Association
4
minutes’  Southwark Skills Centre
speech)
 Mike Wilson, Pembroke House
 Southwark Youth Parliament

(7 minutes)

3.2 Motion on the Theme
1. Councillor Kieron Williams, Leader of the
Council
2

Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

3

Councillor Hamish McCallum, Leader of the
Opposition
3. Themed debate open to all other councillors
4. Cabinet member’s right of reply to the debate
20:30 – 20:50
4. Deputation requests
(5
minutes’  Residents of East Dulwich (Royal Mail)
speech,
 Pecan (Right to Food)
question to the  Residents of Aylwin Estate (safety concerns on
cabinet;
no
their estate)
questions from
members)
20:50 – 21:25
5.1 Members' Question Time
(5 minutes)
 Late questions
(15 minutes)
 Members' questions to the leader
(15 minutes)
 Members' questions to the cabinet
21:25 – 22:00
5.2 Motions
Motion 1 – Royal Mail
Motion 5 – Southwark’s support for Ukraine (joint
motion)
Motion 2 – Saving the Bermondsey Carnival
Motion 3 – Right to Food
Motion 4 – Tamil Heritage Month (joint motion)
Motion 6 – Supporting Our Communities in Borough
and Bankside, and St George’s
Motion 7 – Representing our residents: a vibrant,
greener and safer Bermondsey
Motion 8 – Protecting and improving Surrey Docks
22:00*
6. Reports
6.1 Member allowances scheme 2022-2023
6.2 Pay policy statement
6.3 Appointment of chief executive (head of paid
service)
6.4 The Gambling Act 2005: Statement of gambling
licensing policy 2022-2025
6.5 Council assembly dates and calendar of
meetings 2022-2023
6.6 Special urgency and urgent implementation
decisions - annual report
(5 minutes)
(25 minutes)
(3 minutes)

2.

* subject to the guillotine rule; maximum 15 minutes debate per item.
Note: Any time left remaining on any item will be rolled into the next items.
That the meeting be conducted as follows:
Item 3 - Themed debate
3
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

4

Community Evidence Submissions
To receive submissions from the groups listed in the themed section of the agenda:






Tustin Community Association
Southwark Skills Centre
Mike Wilson, Pembroke House
Southwark Youth Parliament

Format
A four minute presentation from the group.
Themed debate

To run as listed in the timings above.
Item 4 - Deputations
That the meeting agree to hear deputations from:





Residents of East Dulwich
Pecan
Residents of Aylwin Estate

(Five minutes to speak; deputation question to relevant cabinet member, no questions from
members)
Item 5.2 General motions:
Each motion to have a single debate, subject to the guillotine.
5.2.1 Royal Mail
To change the seconder of the amendment to Councillor Eliza Mann
Item 6.1 Member allowances scheme 2022-23
To vote on the amended report circulated in supplemental agenda no. 2
To change the mover of amendment G to Councillor Adele Morris
To change the seconder of amendment G to Councillor Humaira Ali
1.3

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE MAYOR DEEMS URGENT

1.4

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
The monitoring officer gave all members a dispensation to vote on item 6.1: Member
allowances scheme 2022-23. There were no other declarations.

1.5

MINUTES
The minutes of the ordinary meeting of council assembly held on 23 February 2022 were
4
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

5

agreed as a correct record.
2.

ISSUES RAISED BY THE PUBLIC

2.1

PETITIONS
There were no petitions.

2.2

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
(See page 1 of supplemental agenda 1 and additional papers circulated at the meeting)
There was one question from the public, the answer to which had been circulated before
the meeting. The public questioner asked one supplemental question.

3.

THEMED DEBATE

3.1

COMMUNITY EVIDENCE

The meeting agreed to receive submissions from the following:
Tustin Community Association
The representative spoke to the meeting for four minutes.
Southwark Skills Centre
The representative spoke to the meeting for four minutes.
Mike Wilson, Pembroke House
The representatives spoke to the meeting for four minutes.
Southwark Youth Parliament
The representatives spoke to the meeting for four minutes.
3.2

MOTION ON THE THEME

The leader of the council, Councillor Kieron Williams, presented the motion in the
themed debate.
Councillor Hamish McCallum, the leader of the opposition, responded to the motion
and proposed Amendment A.
5
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

6

Following debate (Councillors Eleanor Kerslake, Tom Flynn, David Noakes, Evelyn
Akoto, Peter Babudu, Humaira Ali, Bill Williams, Leanne Werner, Karl Eastham and
Anood Al-Samerai), Councillor Kieron Williams responded to the debate.
Amendment A was put to the vote and declared to be Lost.
The motion was put to the vote and declared to be Carried.
RESOLVED:
For a Fairer, Greener, Safer Borough
1.

Council Assembly welcomes the huge progress that the council has made since
Labour came to power in 2010, delivering a fairer, greener and safer future for all,
building on Southwark Labour’s vision for the borough. This includes:
a.

b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.
k.

2.

Council Assembly also notes that the Council has been on your side supporting
residents through the Covid-19 pandemic through some of the most challenging
times local government has faced in recent years. This has included:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

3.

Supporting 12,000 people into work since 2010, including 5,500 people
supported into work since 2018 despite the significant challenge posed by the
pandemic.
Creating 4,000 apprenticeships, the most of any London borough in the UK.
Halving the council’s carbon emissions since 2018, delivering on a climate
strategy independently ranked in the top 2 of 32 London boroughs.
Delivering on our pledge to plant over 10,000 trees
Achieving Green Flag status for 22 additional parks since 2010
On track to build and start 2,500 new council homes by May since 2014 and
agreed a new Southwark Plan which will deliver 40,000 new homes by 2036.
Improving our schools so that 95% are now ranked good or outstanding by
OFSTED.
Guaranteed an education, training or employment opportunity for every young
person leaving our care
Provided a free mental health drop in service for all children and young people
Opened five new libraries since 2010.
Retained the eighth lowest council tax in London.

Supporting over 73,000 vulnerable residents through Covid
Distributing over £250m of grants and business rate relief to local businesses
Helping 450 rough sleepers into emergency accommodation
Getting £20m of support to community groups to tackle the impact of Covid
Providing 1,700 laptops to school children who needed them the most.

Council Assembly notes its appreciation to officers, our voluntary and community
groups, local businesses, statutory partners such as the NHS and the Police and,
importantly, residents and local resident groups for the role that they have played in
these achievements, and for the role that they will play in ensuring another decade of
improvements for the people of Southwark.
6
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

7

4.

Council Assembly notes that this has been achieved despite the Liberal Democrats’
and Conservatives’ opposition to progress which has included:
a.

b.

c.
d.

5.

Overseeing an austerity programme in government which has seen the
Council’s funding from central government cut by two thirds in real terms since
2010
Failing to recognise the huge improvements to council services since 2010
despite significantly higher levels of funding for local government under the
previous Labour government
Abstaining on funding for a new anti-social behaviour taskforce and support for
residents to tackle the cost of living crisis in this year’s Budget
Failing to acknowledge the hard work and dedication of the council’s frontline
workers who have done an incredible job continuing to deliver services
throughout the pandemic.

Council Assembly therefore notes that only Southwark Labour can be trusted to
deliver for residents, while the Southwark Liberal Democrats will only let residents
down. It therefore resolves to call upon cabinet to bring forward a substantial policy
programme including a refreshed Borough Plan for the next four years that will
include Southwark Labour’s plan to deliver a fairer, greener and safer future for
residents including:
a.

b.

c.

d.
e.

Achieve a stronger economy building upon Southwark Labour’s achievement
of creating good jobs. The new Borough Plan should look to create more jobs
and apprenticeships in high growth industries that can give back to our
borough and our planet, and put in place measures to support Southwark’s
high streets
Tackle the climate emergency, cutting carbon emissions again with greener
buildings, more parks, nature sites, cycle hangers and electric vehicle charging
points to maintain momentum in making Southwark carbon neutral by 2030
Deliver safer streets and estates investing £2m in a taskforce to tackle antisocial behaviour hotspots, upgrade street lighting across the borough and
install more CCTV cameras
Build more council homes and deliver more homes of different tenures for the
benefit of all Southwark residents
Support our families by tackling health inequalities, particularly through mental
health challenges.

6.

Although this represents an ambitious set of pledges for Southwark, Council
Assembly acknowledges that more can be achieved with greater financial resources.
Therefore, Council Assembly also resolves to campaign for a fairer financial
settlement from central government that does not ignore the wide disparities that still
exist in London, with those on the lowest incomes more likely to suffer from health
problems, squalid living conditions with no prospect of owning their own home and
often insecure employment in the form of zero hour contracts.

7.

Council Assembly also acknowledges that the cost of living crisis is having a
significant impact on our residents’ finances, with a pronounced impact on those on
the lowest incomes. Government has compounded these issues by cutting Universal
Credit by £20 a week for those most in need of government support, as well as
7
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

8

increasing national insurance which will hit people on the lowest incomes. Council
Assembly therefore calls upon Cabinet to:
a.
b.

8.

4.

Set up a cost of living fund to support Southwark’s most vulnerable residents
Support the national Labour Party’s plan for a more comprehensive package of
measures and sustain a campaign for more support for the borough’s
residents.

Levelling up has also been described as a key pillar of the government’s strategy to
tackle inequality, however in reality there is very little for London boroughs, where
the gap between rich and poor is the largest. Council Assembly acknowledges that
the Council has made great improvements including lowering health disparities
across the borough, building 2,500 new council homes since 2014 and cutting the
council’s carbon emissions since 2018, however without government support it will
be impossible for the council to close the gap completely. Therefore, council
assembly calls upon cabinet to write to the Secretary of State for Levelling Up,
Housing and Communities expressing its support for the London Councils position
that states that levelling up the UK does not mean levelling down London, and
campaign for a fair share of the levelling up fund.

DEPUTATIONS

As part of the programme motion the meeting agreed to hear deputations from:
Residents of East Dulwich
The group’s representatives spoke to the meeting for five minutes and thereafter
asked a question of the leader of the council.
Pecan
The group’s representatives spoke to the meeting for five minutes.
Residents of the Aylwin Estate
The group’s representatives spoke to the meeting for five minutes and thereafter
asked a question of the cabinet member for a safer, cleaner borough.
5.

ISSUES RAISED BY MEMBERS

5.1

MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME
There was one late question to the leader from Councillor Hamish McCallum, the written
response to which was circulated by email before the meeting. There were two
supplemental questions.
There were 28 members’ questions, the written responses to which were circulated by
8
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

9

email before the meeting. There were 15 supplemental questions. Councillor Adele Morris
made a point of personal explanation.
5.2

MEMBERS' MOTIONS
Councillor Maggie Browning moved a motion to extend the guillotine by ten minutes. This
was seconded by the Mayor of Southwark, Councillor Barrie Hargrove, and agreed.
Motion 1: Royal Mail
This motion was considered prior to the guillotine having fallen.
Councillor Margy Newens moved the motion. Councillor James McAsh seconded the
motion.
There was one amendment to the motion. Councillor Graham Neale moved Amendment
B. Councillor Eliza Mann seconded Amendment B
After debate (Councillors Paul Fleming, Andy Simmons), Amendment B was put to the
vote and declared to be lost.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.
1.

Council assembly notes that:
a.

The SE22 sorting office was closed on September 17 2018, despite opposition
from residents, ward councillors and the local MP, which has significantly
impacted the quality of service received in Dulwich.

b.

Royal Mail provides an essential service to residents throughout the borough,
however residents have experienced significant disruption to their post service
with letters arriving up to six weeks later than normal.

c.

This has had a significant negative impact on residents, risking them missing
important mail such as NHS appointments, benefits and pensions letters.

d.

Covid-19 has exacerbated these delays to the service, and despite the
challenges Royal Mail staff have faced as a result of the pandemic it appears
that contingency plans have not been put in place, leaving residents without
regular mail. It is also clear from the closure of the Sylvester Road office in
2018 that these issues predate the pandemic.

e.

The Communication Workers’ Union (CWU) has reported that ‘managerial
capacity issues’ are in part to blame for service issues.

f.

Royal Mail workers have worked exceptionally hard in difficult circumstances to
keep services running.
9
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

10

2.

3.

Council assembly further notes that:
a.

Despite ward councillors’ and the local MP’s efforts and discussions with Royal
Mail, there has been no action taken to improve the service. This was
compounded during the Christmas period when chaos at the sorting office
meant that people were receiving post sent before Christmas well into the New
Year.

b.

That Royal Mail was part-privatised in 2013 with Liberal Democrat MP Vince
Cable as the Minister overseeing the privatisation, and fully privatised in 2015.
Royal Mail finances since have deteriorated, leading to 2,000 job losses by
June 2020 with a further 700 job losses announced. This has only exacerbated
the issues that Southwark residents have been facing.

c.

Furthermore, the Liberal Democrats in coalition with the Conservatives botched
the privatisation with the Business, Innovation and Skills committee reporting
that this cost the taxpayer approximately £1bn. A private Royal Mail has gone
on to asset strip, with the sale of Sylvester Road amongst many others with no
regard to the impact this has had on service users.

Council assembly therefore resolves to:
a.

Lobby Royal Mail to reopen a delivery office in the SE22 area.

b.

Campaign to bring Royal Mail back into public ownership, with the Leader
writing to the Chancellor to this effect.

Motion 2: Council-supported events and the Bermondsey Carnival
This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.
There was one amendment to the motion.
Amendment C was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.
1.

Council assembly notes that:
a.

Southwark, like many parts of the world, has suffered from the Covid-19
pandemic with social activity and outdoor leisure severely limited in recent
years.

b.

In the last decade Southwark has developed into one of London’s most vibrant
and innovative locations for cultural and event activity.

c.

The Council has faced significant cuts to its funding, with two thirds of
government grants cut from the council’s budget by successive Liberal
Democrat and Conservative governments, leading to difficult decisions having
10
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

11

to be made.
d.

Despite financial and Covid-related challenges, the council continues to
support an exciting series of free events, which take place throughout the year.
From 2018 to 2022, the council supported 5,500 cultural events.

e.

The commitments made in the 2021-22 Borough Plan that all event grant
funding programmes deliver on Southwark Stands Together commitments and
to ensure that 100% of funding for events is proportionately reflective of the
demographic make-up of the borough.

f. Welcomes the establishment of the Cultural Celebrations Fund to encourage and
promote community engagement and cohesion around the borough. The fund
replaced the regular support of a small number of events with open access
grants available to all community event organisers. Almost 30,000 people
attended events across the borough in 2021-22.

2.

g.

Progress has been made to date, most notably that 27% of the 2021-22 funded
event organisers through the Cultural Celebrations Fund came from Black,
Asian and minority ethnic backgrounds, sharing 35% of the total grant funding
but acknowledges there is more to do to ensure that funding is fully reflective of
our population.

h.

It takes a huge amount of effort from organisers and officers to ensure that
events can happen in a way that remains respectful to local residents, and
council assembly thanks everyone involved to ensure these events can
happen.

Council assembly calls on cabinet to:
a.

Explore ways in which revenue from events can be maximised whilst causing
minimal disruption to local residents so that more community events and
activities can be funded.

b.

Publish a full list of events that receive funding from the council so that
residents can see the diversity of events being funded.

c.

Continue to work to support community events across our borough and ensure
a range of events are supported.

Motion 3: Right to Food
This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.
There were no amendments to the motion.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

1.

Council assembly notes that:
11
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

12

a.

We are seeing a crisis of food poverty borne out of political choices and
systemic failings from successive governments since austerity began in
2010;

b.

Food poverty should never be seen as inevitable, and notes that from
1997 to 2010 poverty reduced significantly (for instance the Institute for
Fiscal Studies notes that the number of children in relative poverty fell
by over 1.1 million from 1997-2010), showing that with sufficient political
willpower these issues can be tackled;

c.

After a decade of government-imposed austerity, child poverty and
hunger has increased significantly, and led to a precarious situation for
many, even before the pandemic struck;

d.

The pandemic has exacerbated problems and pushed more people into
food poverty, with perhaps the worst yet to come. We know that in
Southwark:
i.

ii.

e.

The Government cut Universal Credit by £20 per week, which came into
effect in October 2021 and has had a significant impact, noting
the following:
i.

ii.

f.

2.

over 10,000 children are currently eligible for Free School Meals
and therefore at risk of going hungry during the school holidays,
with this number rising; and
foodbank use in Southwark has increased four-fold since March
2020 when the coronavirus crisis took hold

the Joseph Rowntree Foundation - a charity which researches
poverty - states millions of households will face an income loss
equivalent to £1,040 a year;
the charity Citizens Advice has warned that a third of people on
Universal Credit will end up in debt due to the reduction, which will
inevitably lead to more people being reliant on food banks; and the
5-week wait for Universal Credit impacts people’s ability to pay bills
and buy food, and believes that this wait is wholly unjustifiable and
should be scrapped;

Tackling food poverty requires a borough-wide effort, across the Council
and public services, the voluntary and community sector, communities
and business, with a long term, structural approach to find lasting
solutions and that, as such, the Council should continue to build on and
update its borough-wide Food Access Plan

Council assembly notes the work that has already been done, including:
12
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

13

3.

a.

A Food Security action plan has brought together the statutory and voluntary
community sectors. The Southwark Food Action Alliance (SFAA) are focused
on improving access to support for people with food insecurity, improve
education and learning about sustainable food and improved access to healthy
and affordable food for all.

b.

Supported the development of community fridge, pantry and neighbourhood
food models to help provide more dignity and community food resilience.

c.

Implemented completing cultural foods audits which help ensure the cultural
appropriateness of food provided by hubs

d.

Implemented a Good Food retail programme that works with convenience
stores to improve their healthy, culturally appropriate affordable food offer.

e.

Supported over 16,000 children through food security interventions,

f.

Offered food vouchers to families of all free school meal eligible
children, delivering 162,674 meals to over 4,000 children, taking action
in advance of the government’s shameful U-turn on free school meals
during Covid.

g.

Provided over 29,500 food parcels to those who needed them the most
during the pandemic.

h.

As a result of Covid, refreshed and extended our current Food Security action
plan until April 2022, prioritising resilience, access to affordable food and
sustainability.

i.

Being recognised as a Sustainable Food Place and developed a sustainable
food strategy to replace current food security strategy post April 2022

j.

Working collaboratively with over 60 organisations locally.

Council assembly therefore resolves to:
a.

Give its support to The Right to Food campaign, a national campaign
which argues that the 11 million people in food poverty should be central
to this strategy, and that ‘Right to Food ’should be enshrined into law clarifying government’s obligations on food poverty and introducing legal
avenues to hold government bodies accountable for violations.

b.

Call for the Unite and Co-op backed ‘Right to Food’ to be incorporated
into the National Food Strategy as well as call for a reversal to the £20
cut to universal credit, and asks the Leader of the Council to write to the
Government to make this case.

c.

Build upon its action plan to increase household food security to ensure
13
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

14

that no household goes hungry.
Motion 4: Tamil Heritage Month
This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.
There were no amendments to the motion.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

1.

2.

Council assembly observes that:
a.

The London Assembly in December unanimously passed a motion declaring
support for Tamil Heritage Month in January.

b.

Multiple councils celebrate the Tamil community. Harrow Council declared
January Tamil Heritage Month in 2020. While, Kingston Council unveiled a
plaque dedicated to its twin city, Jaffna in northern Sri Lanka, earlier this year.

c.

January is significant for the Tamil community as it is also when they celebrate
their Harvest Festival, Pongal.

d.

The Tamil community has made an incredible contribution to the UK. The
London Assembly has quoted estimates that 15,000 Tamil doctors, nurses and
front-line health professionals work for NHS England. Many of them will have
risked their safety by working during the covid-19 pandemic.

e.

The community has also played a part in a range of fields such as in education
and in the business sector. Their role in our society is evident in Southwark, as
well.

f.

Tamil people have encountered devastating violence outside of Britain. This
includes the Sri Lankan civil conflict for which the UN opened an investigation
into for alleged war crimes.

Council assembly resolves to:
a.

Recognise the contribution of this community by declaring January as Tamil
Heritage Month in the borough of Southwark for future years.

Motion 5: Southwark’s support for Ukraine
This motion was considered before the guillotine had fallen. Councillor Alice Macdonald
moved the motion. Councillor Victor Chamberlain seconded the motion.
There were no amendments to the motion.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
14
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

15

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.
1.

Council assembly strongly condemns Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, and expresses
our solidarity with the people of Ukraine. Council assembly:
a.

b.

c.

d.

2.

Council assembly also notes that there is much more the government can and
should do, including:
a.

b.

c.
d.

3.

Notes that over 1 million Ukrainians have been forced to leave the country
fleeing the conflict, and that those people who have remained in the country
are facing a humanitarian crisis.
Stands in solidarity with Ukraine and the Ukrainian people against Putin’s
illegal invasion, their friends and relatives here in Southwark, as well as
Russian citizens who are bravely protesting against the war despite the serious
risk to their own lives and safety.
Notes Southwark’s commitment to being a borough of sanctuary, and that the
council has a proud record of supporting refugees fleeing from Afghanistan,
Syria and many other conflicts, helping them to settle in the borough.
Thanks Southwark residents and organisations who have already made
generous donations to support Ukrainian refugees.

A humanitarian response to the refugee crisis by opening more routes for
Ukrainian nationals to come to the UK, equivalent to those already offered by
other European countries.
Working with local authorities to adequately resource and plan for the potential
resettlement of people from Ukraine in order to provide crucial services for
refugees including access to housing, employment, education, social care and
mental health support.
Continuing to send crucial aid to Ukraine.
Making sure that oligarchs in the UK who are linked to the Putin regime have
their assets seized before they have the opportunity to sell them.

Council assembly therefore calls on the cabinet to:
a.

b.

c.

Support Ukrainian refugees, working in collaboration with the local voluntary
and community sector as part of the council’s pledge as a borough of
sanctuary for those fleeing conflict.
Lobby the government to do more to open safe routes for refugees fleeing
Ukraine to come to the UK, and to provide resources for councils to support
refugees

Use the council’s channels to promote information and resources to
support Ukrainian residents and anyone impacted by the conflict, and
signpost how residents can help with the effort.

Note: If the motion is agreed, any proposals will be submitted to the cabinet for
consideration.
Motion 6: Making Borough and Bankside and St George’s fairer, greener and safer
This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.
15
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

16

There was one amendment to the motion.
Amendment D was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.
1.

Council Assembly observes that the Labour administration has delivered a fairer,
greener and safer future for Borough and Bankside and St George’s by:
a.

Spending £350,617 of the administration’s Cleaner, Greener, Safer money
supporting 49 projects on Borough and Bankside and £227,331 on 31 projects
in St George’s.

b.

Delivering 74 new council homes in the area despite the sparsity of available
council-owned land so that more families can live in the borough they call
home.

c.

Finding shelter for people sleeping rough by the Imperial War Museum over
Christmas 2019, as part of the Council’s success in rehousing over 300 rough
sleepers into long-term homes.

d.

Installing a permanent memorial to the London Bridge and Borough Market
terror attack victims.

e.

During Covid-19 lockdowns, distributed food to residents and arranged
collections of prescriptions from pharmacies as part of the council’s effort to
help over 73,000 vulnerable residents through the Covid pandemic.

f. Using CGS money to invest in 34 gardening projects and create 10 cycle hangers
across the two wards.
g.

Supporting residents suffering from the impacts of noise on their homes, such
as those generated from busking, licensing and construction activities, working
collaboratively to mitigate the impact of noise pollution on residents.

h.

Supported the opening of a pop up LGBT+ cultural space in Bankside

i. Installing 8 bike hangars in St George’s and 7 bike hangers in Borough and
Bankside, ensuring that Borough and Bankside residents benefit from two new
cycleways with three more due to be completed by May 2022.
j. A new school street for Charles Dickens Primary School and Charlotte Sharman
Foundation Primary School.
k.

Supporting the Central School of Ballet to move to Bankside.

l. Working with the University of the Arts London (UAL) to secure a permanent home
for them at Elephant and Castle.
16
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

17

m.
2.

Using CIL funding to support a revamp of Marlborough Sports Gardens.

To maintain momentum following the good progress already made, Council
Assembly therefore calls upon Cabinet to:
a.

Invest over £60m to create a new Northern Line station at Elephant & Castle
as part of a 21st century transport hub.

b.

Continue to lobby for the Bakerloo Line extension so that Borough and
Bankside is better connected.

c.

Campaign for an improved and accessible Elephant and Castle train station

d.

Complete the build of a permanent LGBTQ+ cultural space at Bankside Yard.

e.

Ensure that Borough and Bankside and St George’s benefits from
Southwark Labour’s pledge to create more good jobs, cut the council’s
carbon emission by half, make our streets and estates safer, build more
homes local people can afford and support our most vulnerable
residents.

Motion 7: Making Bermondsey fairer, greener and safer
This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.
There was one amendment to the motion.
Amendment E was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.
1.

Council Assembly observes that the Labour administration has delivered a fairer,
greener and safer future for Bermondsey by:
a.

Spending £1,272,373 of the administration’s Cleaner, Greener, Safer money
supporting 154 projects in Bermondsey.

b.

Delivering 624 new council homes despite the sparsity of council-owned land
in Bermondsey to ensure that more families can live in the borough they call
home.

c.

Tackling air pollution on the congested Jamaica Road by delivering Cycleway 4
and investing in cycle hire stands and greenery on the road.

d.

Renewing street lighting and improved road safety.

e.

Securing over £2m to transform the Blue in South Bermondsey, upgrading the
17
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

18

market and securing a new multi arts centre.
f. Using CGS money to invest in 45 gardening projects and create 33 cycle hangers
across Bermondsey.
g.

Delivering new homes in Welsford Street in South Bermondsey with 10 family
houses. Also delivering Cherry Gardens School on site with 26 new council
homes.

h.

Working in partnership with Leathermarket JMB in London Bridge and West
Bermondsey to deliver 27 new homes at Marklake Court.

i. Delivering a new community space and home for our Southwark Young Advisers at
231 Old Kent Road.
j. Installed rooftop solar at Ellen Brown Children’s Centre as part of delivering our
Climate Emergency Strategy.
2.

To maintain momentum following the good progress already made, Council
Assembly therefore calls upon Cabinet to:
a.

Deliver major improvements to Guy’s Park

b.

Upgrade Bermondsey Spa Gardens adventure playground with new play
equipment.

c.

Work with residents to deliver major improvements to the Abbeyfield Estate.

d.

Work with the Mayor of London to upgrade South Bermondsey station.

e.

Ensure that Bermondsey benefits from Southwark Labour’s pledge to create
more good jobs, cut the council’s carbon emission by half, make our streets
and estates safer, build more homes local people can afford and support our
most vulnerable residents.

Motion 8: Making Surrey Docks fairer, greener and safer
This motion was considered after the guillotine having fallen.
There was one amendment to the motion.
Amendment F was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.
Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.
1.

Council Assembly observes that the Labour administration has delivered a fairer,
greener and safer future for Surrey Docks by:
a.

Spending £467,585 of Cleaner, Greener, Safer money supporting 34 projects
18
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

19

in Surrey Docks.
b.

Improving access to full fibre broadband in Rotherhithe, working with providers
to extend full fibre to all council estates, and securing new partnership with
Openreach to further upgrade full fibre broadband across the Pensisula.

c.

Supporting local residents with training through the Southwark Construction
Skills centre, through its new homes at Canada Water.

d.

Delivering 3 new bike hangars in Surrey Docks with 2 more completed by May
2022.

e.

Ensuring that Surrey Docks residents benefit from Quietway 14 and linking
Surrey Docks in with the Rotherhithe to Peckham cycleway.

f. Delivering more council housing in Surrey Docks including 8 homes at Fisher
Close, 16 at Salter Road, 19 at Danny McCarthy House and 71 at Canada
Water K1 site all bought through section 106 commitments.

2.

g.

Using £500,000 of CIL money to refurbish community buildings at the Surrey
Docks Farm.

h.

Allocating £3m to fund improvement works to South Docks Marina, working
with berth-holders and the local community to develop the boatyard and marina
into a centre of excellence.

To maintain momentum following the good progress already made, Council
Assembly therefore calls upon Cabinet to:
a.

Open a new leisure centre at Canada Water and campaign for a pedestrian
and cyclist river crossing.

b.

Create a brand new park within a short walk from Surrey Docks that residents
can enjoy.

c.

Ensure that Surrey Docks benefits from Southwark Labour’s pledge to
create more good jobs, cut the council’s carbon emission by half, make
our streets and estates safer, build more homes local people can afford
and support our most vulnerable residents.

6.

REPORTS FOR DECISION

6.1

MEMBER ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2022-2023

There was one amendment to the report. Councillor Adele Morris moved
amendment G. Councillor Humaira Ali seconded amendment G.
Amendment G was put to the vote and declared Lost.
19
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

20

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:
1.

6.2

That council assembly approve the member allowances scheme for
2022-2023 with effect from 1 April 2022, having regard to the advice of
the London Councils Independent Remuneration Panel Report 2022 (see
Appendix 1 and Addendum of the report).

PAY POLICY STATEMENT

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:
1.

6.3

That the council’s pay policy statement, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report,
is approved.

APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE (HEAD OF PAID SERVICE)
After debate (Councillors Kieron Williams, William Houngbo, Charlie Smith), the
recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:
1.

6.4

That Althea Loderick is appointed as the Chief Executive of the London
Borough of Southwark and becomes the statutory Head of Paid Service.

THE GAMBLING ACT 2005: STATEMENT OF GAMBLING LICENSING POLICY 20222025

After debate (Councillor Renata Hamvas), the recommendations were put to the
vote and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:
1.

That the Council Assembly:
a.

Considered the recommendation from the Licensing Committee to approve the
Southwark Statement of Gambling Policy 2022-2025 provided at Appendix A to
the report.

b.

Approved the Southwark Statement of Gambling Policy 2022-2025 for
publication.

20
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

21

6.5

COUNCIL ASSEMBLY DATES AND CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2022-2023

After debate (Councillor Nick Dolezal), the recommendations were put to the vote
and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:
1.

That council assembly agreed the following dates for meetings of council
assembly be fixed in the council calendar for the 2022-23 municipal year:
Council Assembly
Saturday 21 May 2022 at
11.00am
(Date as agreed by
council
assembly 24 March 2021)
Wednesday 13 July 2022
Wednesday 23 November 2022
Wednesday 22 February 2023
Wednesday 22 March 2023
Saturday 20 May 2023 at 11am
Alternative date: Monday 22 May
2023 at 7pm

2.

6.6

Type of Meeting
Annual Meeting
Note: To be held jointly with Civic
Awards Ceremony
Ordinary meeting
Ordinary meeting
Budget and council tax setting
Ordinary meeting
Annual meeting
Note: May be held jointly with Civic
Awards Ceremony

That council assembly noted the calendar of council meetings for the 2022-23
municipal year as shown at Appendix 1 of the report.

SPECIAL URGENCY AND URGENT IMPLEMENTATION DECISIONS - ANNUAL
REPORT

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:

2.

7.

That council assembly noted the schedule of special urgency and urgent
implementation decisions (set out in Appendix 1 of the report) taken in
accordance with access to information procedure rules 19 and 20.

AMENDMENTS

The amendments are set out in supplemental agenda 2.

21
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

22

The meeting closed at 10.35 pm.

CHAIR:

DATED:

22
Council Assembly (Ordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

23

Council Assembly
(Extraordinary meeting)
MINUTES of the Council Assembly (Extraordinary meeting) held on Wednesday 23
March 2022 at 8.00 pm at Council Offices, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT:
The Worshipful the Mayor for , Councillor Barrie Hargrove (Chair)
Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Victor Chamberlain
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor James Coldwell
Councillor Stephanie Cryan
Councillor Helen Dennis
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor William Houngbo
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall
Councillor Richard Livingstone

Councillor Alice Macdonald
Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor James McAsh
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor Adele Morris
Councillor Graham Neale
Councillor Margy Newens
Councillor David Noakes
Councillor Damian O'Brien
Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Leo Pollak
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Catherine Rose
Councillor Jane Salmon
Councillor Martin Seaton
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Michael Situ
Councillor Charlie Smith
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Kath Whittam
Councillor Bill Williams
Councillor Kieron Williams
Councillor Ian Wingfield

1
Council Assembly (Extraordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

24

1.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1.1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Jack Buck, Gavin Edwards, Sirajul
Islam, Peter John, Nick Johnson, Lorraine Lauder (on long term sickness absence),
Rebecca Lury, Victoria Olisa and Dan Whitehead.

1.2

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
There were none.

1.3

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE MAYOR DEEMS URGENT
There were none.

1.4

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
There were none.

2.

FREEDOMS OF THE BOROUGH NOMINATIONS 2022

The recommendations were put to the vote and declared Carried.
RESOLVED:
1.

3.

That Council Assembly agreed the nominations for the award of Freedom of
the Borough as set out in the closed report.

FREEDOMS OF THE BOROUGH NOMINATIONS 2022 - NOMINEES
As set out in Item 2 above.

The meeting closed at 10.40 pm.

CHAIR:

DATED:

2
Council Assembly (Extraordinary meeting) - Wednesday 23 March 2022

25

Item No.
3.1

Classification:
Open

Agenda Item 3.1

Date:
21 May 2022

Meeting Name:
Council Assembly (Annual
Meeting)

Report title:

Appointment of Leader and Executive Functions –
2022-2023

Ward(s) or groups
affected:

All

From:

Proper Constitutional Officer

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That council assembly consider the following executive issues for the
coming municipal year 2022-2023:







Appoint a leader of the council
Notes the appointment by the leader of cabinet members
Notes the appointment of any deputy cabinet members
Notes the establishment and appointment of any cabinet committees
Notes the leader’s report on the delegation of executive functions to
the full cabinet, cabinet committees, individual cabinet members, chief
officers and multi-ward forums
Notes that as a consequence, the proper constitutional officer will
update Part 3 of the constitution in accordance with the leader’s report
on the delegation of executive functions.

Appointment of leader of the council
2.

That council assembly appoint a leader of the council.

3.

That council assembly notes that the leader’s term of office shall commence
from 21 May 2022, and end at the start of the first annual meeting of the
council following the next ordinary election1, unless otherwise specified by a
resolution of council assembly (see paragraphs 14 - 17).

Appointment of the cabinet
4.

That the leader reports to council assembly on the appointment of members
of the cabinet and determination of their executive functions.
Note:

1.
2.

1

The leader will report on appointments to the cabinet and
on individual portfolios.
The leader can appoint between two and nine members
to form a cabinet.

Article 6.3 of the Constitution

1

26

3.

The leader must appoint a deputy leader.

Appointment of deputy cabinet members
5.

That the leader reports to council assembly on the appointment of deputy
cabinet members and determination of their duties and responsibilities.
Note:

The leader will report on any changes to deputy cabinet
members and on individual responsibility for specific tasks
designated by the leader, following consultation with the
monitoring officer.

Establishment and appointment of cabinet committees
6.

That the leader reports on the establishment of any cabinet committees.
Note:

1.

2.

The leader to establish any cabinet committees, set terms
of reference and nominate cabinet members to serve on
the committees, including appointing a chair and vicechair.
There are three cabinet committees: Cabinet (Livesey
Trust) Committee, Better Placed Joint Committee and
Joint IT Committee (Brent, Lewisham and Southwark).

Delegation of executive functions
7.

The leader will report on the delegation of executive functions between full
cabinet, individual decision makers, chief officers and multi-ward forums
(see paragraphs 18 - 21)

8.

That council assembly notes the leader’s report on any changes to the
delegation of executive functions to the full cabinet, cabinet committees,
individual cabinet members, chief officers and multi-ward forums.

9.

That council assembly notes that as a consequence of recommendation 6
the proper constitutional officer will update Part 3 of the constitution in
accordance with the leader’s report on the delegation of executive functions.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
10.

The constitution is updated as and when changes are required. The
recommendations in this report are based on the current constitution.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
Leader and cabinet
11.

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 required
the council to make changes to its governance and decision making
arrangements. At an extraordinary meeting of council assembly on 4
November 2009 the council agreed that the current executive leader and
2

27

cabinet model be adopted. The new
immediately after the elections in May 2010.

arrangements

commenced

12.

Under the executive “leader and cabinet” model there is a leader of the
council and a cabinet of at least two but no more than nine other councillors.
The leader is responsible for all executive functions, and decides which of
these functions are going to be delegated to other cabinet members, local
committees or council officers. The cabinet is appointed by the leader.

13.

On 16 September 2020, council assembly appointed Councillor Kieron
Williams as leader of the council and his term of office commenced from
that date and shall end at the start of the first annual meeting of the council
following the next ordinary election2, which is on 21 May 2022.

Appointment of leader of the council
14.

The Local Government Act 2000 provisions on executive arrangements
were updated by the Localism Act 2011 and the new provision for electing a
leader and agreeing the term of office is less prescriptive. It states that a
council operating leader and cabinet executive arrangements must make
provision for the election of a leader, but it may make provision with respect
to their term of office. So, the council no longer has to make provision for a
four year term, or indeed any defined term. Under the new provisions, the
constitution will retain the clause that allows for the leader to be removed by
a resolution of the council assembly.

15.

The new provisions apply at this annual meeting (constitutional). The
meeting will appoint a leader of the council and at the same time have the
opportunity of setting a different term of office and/or end point of the
leader’s term of office; otherwise the status quo would prevail. Currently the
constitution states that the leader is appointed for four years and the term
ends at the annual meeting following borough-wide elections, at which the
new leader is to be appointed.

16.

In a report to the constitutional steering panel (CSP) on 5 March 2014, it
was reported that in officers’ view the current term of office arrangements in
the constitution should be maintained. There is some merit in maintaining
stable leadership and stability to the council’s constitutional and executive
arrangements over the four year period between elections. This enhances
transparency and accountability for executive decision making. It should be
noted by way of balance, the constitution includes a number of measures to
hold the executive to account including scrutiny committees, call-in of
executive decisions, urgent implementation procedures requiring
involvement of the chair of the overview and scrutiny committee and a
means of removing the leader from office if a resolution is approved by
council assembly.

17.

Some of the alternatives reported to CSP for the annual meeting
(constitutional) included reducing the length of the term, appointing the

2

Article 6.3 of the Constitution

3

28

leader annually or changing the end point of the leader’s term of office to
the fourth day after the next borough wide elections.
Report of the leader of the council and delegation of executive functions
18.

Each year the elected leader must appoint their cabinet. In accordance with
the constitution this can consist of a minimum of two and up to a maximum
of nine nominated members, whose portfolios are determined and allocated
by the leader. The leader must appoint a deputy leader.

19.

The leader will be invited to report on the delegation of executive functions,
appoint a deputy leader and appoint other cabinet members and determine
their portfolios.

20.

The leader will report on any further delegations including:





21.

The extent of any authority delegated to cabinet members
individually, including details of the limitation on their authority
The terms of reference and membership of any cabinet committees
The nature and extent of any delegation of executive functions to
multi-ward forums, any other authority or joint arrangement
The nature and extent of any delegation to officers with details of
any limitation on that delegation.

The leader may also decide to delegate executive functions to the health
and wellbeing board. During the year the leader may vary the executive
scheme of delegation by giving notice to the monitoring officer. A variation
may be permanent or relate to a particular decision.

Deputy cabinet members
22.

The leader will also report on the appointment of any deputy cabinet
members and determine their roles. Deputy cabinet members may hold
responsibility for specific tasks designated by the leader, in consultation with
the monitoring officer. Deputy cabinet members cannot take part in any
formal decision making.

23.

Whilst a deputy cabinet member may be a member of a committee, scrutiny
committee or scrutiny sub-committee, he or she will not be permitted to take
decisions or scrutinise any of their own deputy cabinet member tasks or
duties. Deputy cabinet members shall not be the chair or vice-chair of a
committee or sub-committee which takes decisions or scrutinises matters
relating to their tasks or duties. The chairs of the licensing and planning
committees shall not be deputies.

24.

The duties and responsibilities of deputy cabinet members will be:


To assist cabinet members with specific aspects of their portfolio

4

29






To contribute to the process of setting policy direction, development
and review by assisting cabinet members to develop specific
aspects of their individual portfolio
To represent the relevant cabinet ember at non-decision making
meetings
To assist cabinet members in the drafting and preparation of reports,
responses to questions and other work related to the cabinet
deputy’s duties
To promote the core values, corporate priorities and objectives of
the council.

Role of council assembly
25.

Following receipt of the leader’s report, council assembly will note as a
consequence that the proper constitutional officer will update Part 3 of the
constitution in accordance with the leader’s report on the delegation of
executive functions.

Appointments to panels, boards and forums
26.

The cabinet will consider appointments to panels, boards and forums where
the function falls within the responsibility of the executive (e.g. housing,
education, social services, regeneration, etc).

Policy framework implications
12. This report is not considered to have direct policy implications.
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts
13. There are no specific impacts on the community from this process.
Climate change implications
14. There are no direct climate change implications arising from this report.
Legal implications
15. There are no specific legal implications.
Financial implications
16. There are no direct resource implications in the context of this report.
Consultation
17. Consultation is being undertaken with the Mayor, Group whips and
finance officers.

5

30

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers

Held At

Council Assembly May 2021 - 160 Tooley
Appointment of Executive Functions Street, London,
2021-22 report.
SE1 2TZ

Contact
Virginia Wynn-Jones
Constitutional.team@sou
thwark.gov.uk

The Council’s Constitutional.

APPENDICES
Appendix

Title

None.

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer
Chidilim Agada, Head of Constitutional Services
Report Author Virginia Wynn-Jones, Principal Constitutional Officer
Version
Final
Dated
12 May 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments Sought
Comments Included
Director
of
Law
and Yes
Yes (included in body of
Governance
report)
Strategic
Director
of No
No
Finance and Governance
Cabinet Member
No
No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
12 May 2022

6

31

Item No.
3.2

Classification:
Open

Agenda Item 3.2

Date:
21 May 2022

Meeting Name:
Council Assembly (Annual
Meeting)

Report title:

Establishment of Committees, Panels and Related
Matters 2022-2023

Ward(s) or groups
affected:

All

From:

Proper Constitutional Officer

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That council assembly notes the appointment of political group leaders, deputies
and whips (information to be circulated separately).

2.

That council assembly notes the new political balance of the council as follows:
Table 1a: Political balance after the elections on 5 May 2022
Group
Labour
Liberal Democrat
Total

Members
52
11
63

%
82.54
17.46
100.00

Table 1b: Political balance before the election on 5 May 2022
Group
Labour
Liberal Democrat
Independent (not a group)
Total

Members
48
14
1
63

%
76.19
22.22
1.59
100.00

3.

That council assembly notes the change to proportionality and the new allocation
of seats on committees and panels as set out below.

4.

That council assembly establishes the following committees for the coming
municipal year 2022-23:
Table 2: Ordinary Committees - Total number of seats 29
Note: The political balance rules require that the political groups represented
on council have proportionate representation on council committees. A political
group must comprise at least two members. Councils can allocate seats on
committees to members not aligned to a group, but are under no statutory
obligation to do so. The below tables are based on the committees as agreed

1

32

by council assembly on 24 May 2021. The allocations prior to the borough
wide elections on 5 May 2022 are shown in brackets.
Committee
Committee 1
Appointments
Committee
Committee 2
Planning Committee
Committee 3
Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee
Committee 4
Corporate Parenting
Committee
Total

Total
7 (7)

Lab
6 (6)

Lib Dem
1 (1)

8 (8)

7 (6)

1 (2)

7 (7)

5 (5)

2 (2)

7 (7)

6 (6)

1 (1)

29 (29)

24 (23)

5 (6)

Table 3: Other committees - Total number of seats 26
Committee
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Licensing Committee
Total

Total
11 (11)

Lab
9 (8)

Lib Dem
2 (3)

15 (15)
26 (26)

12 (12)
21 (20)

3 (3)
5 (6)

Table 4: Multi-ward areas
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
Note:

North-west
North-east
West-central
East-central
South
The composition of multi-ward areas is set out in Article 8 of the
constitution (see paragraph 42 of this report).

Health and wellbeing board
5.

That the health and wellbeing board be established as a committee of the council
under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 with the membership set out in
paragraph 39 of the report.

6.

That it be noted that the leader of the council nominates the local authority
membership. In accordance with committee procedure rules, the leader chairs the
board.

Appointment of chairs and vice chairs
7.

That council assembly considers whether it wishes to appoint chairs and vice
chairs for the following committees:
2

33

Committees







Appointments committee
Planning committee
Audit, governance and standards committee
Corporate parenting committee [see note 1 below]
Overview and scrutiny committee
Licensing committee

Notes:
1.

2.

In 2021-22, the cabinet member responsible for children’s services chaired
the corporate parenting committee. Council assembly is asked to formally
approve this appointment in 2022-23.
All outstanding appointments will be referred to the first meeting of the
respective committee in the 2022-23 municipal year.

Appointment of community champions
8.

That council assembly appoint community champions for the following multi-ward
areas:
Multi-ward areas






North-west
North-east
West-central
East-central
South

Establishment of the council’s panels
9.

That council assembly establishes the following council panels (see paragraph
53):
Table 5: Panels - Total number of seats 16
Panel
Council assembly
business panel
Constitutional steering
panel
Pensions advisory
panel
Voluntary bodies
appointments panel
Total

Total
4 (4)

Lab
3 (3)

Lib Dem
1 (1)

4 (4)

3 (3)

1 (1)

3 (3)

2 (2)

1 (1)

5 (5)

4 (4)

1 (1)

16 (16)

12 (12)

4 (4)

Note: This table is based on the panels established in 2021-22.
3

34

Appointments of chair to constitutional steering panel and voluntary bodies
appointments panel
10. That council assembly appoints a chair to the following panels:



Constitutional steering panel [see note 1 below]
Voluntary bodies appointments panel.

Notes:
1.

The group whip of the majority group chaired the constitutional steering
panel in 2021-22. Council assembly is asked to formally approve this
appointment in 2022-23.

2.

That it be noted that the Mayor chairs the council assembly business
panel.

Urgency committee
11. That the role of the urgency committee between a municipal election and the
annual meeting of council assembly, as agreed by council assembly on 26 March
2014, be noted as set out in paragraphs 55 and 56.
Appointments to Local Government Association (LGA) General Assembly
12. That council assembly appoints up to three representatives and allocates the
seven votes to representatives to attend the LGA General Assembly (see
paragraphs 55 and 56).
Other appointments to joint committees/outside bodies
13. That council assembly notes the cabinet and other committees will make
appointments to all other outside committees and bodies for the municipal year
2022-23 as required by part 3Q of the constitution.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
14. The constitution is updated as and when changes are required.
The
recommendations in this report are based on the current constitution and
previous decisions of the council.
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
Proportionality – the legal position
15. The size and composition of the council’s regulatory and other committees are
established in accordance with the number of seats each political group has on the
council as a whole – this is known as “proportionality”.

4

35

16. The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 covers the allocation of seats to
political groups. It makes no provision for single independent councillors so they do
not form part of the proportionality considerations. The political balance rules
require the council to ensure that the political groups represented on council have
proportionate representation on the committees of the council. Political groups
have to constitute two or more members and be actively constituted as a group in
accordance with the above regulations.
17. Seats on committees and sub-committees must be allocated in accordance with
the four principles of proportionality contained in sections 15, 16 and 17 of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. There is a duty to give effect to the
following principles, as far as is reasonably practicable:
(i)

That not all the seats on a committee or sub-committee are allocated to the
same political group

(ii)

That the majority group must have the majority of seats on each committee or
sub-committee
Note: As the Labour Group has an overall majority on the council, this
principle has been applied.

(iii) Subject to (i) and (ii) above, it must be ensured that the proportion of each
political group’s seats of the total number of seats on “ordinary committees”
reflects, as closely as possible, their proportion of seats on full council.
Notes:
1.

The ordinary committees are: appointments; planning; audit,
governance and standards; corporate parenting (see also paragraphs
19 to 22).

2.

The licensing committee is appointed under the Licensing Act 2003, the
overview and scrutiny committee is appointed under section 9F of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the health and wellbeing board is
appointed under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and is to be
treated as if appointed under section 102 of the Local Government Act
1972 (subject to modifications of the effect of section 102 made by the
Secretary of State). None of the aforementioned committees is treated
as an ordinary committee.

(iv) Subject to (i) to (iii) above, the proportion of each political group’s seats on
each committee and sub-committee reflects as closely as possible their
proportion of seats on full council.
Note:

This rule applies to all committees, sub-committees and joint
committees, except for the licensing committee.

18. Council assembly can agree an allocation that is disproportionate, provided no
member votes against this.

5

36

Appointments to seats
19. Section 16(1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 provides that it is
the duty of an authority or committee to exercise its power to make appointments
in such a way as to give effect “to such wishes about who is to be appointed to the
seats on that body which are allocated to a particular political group as are
expressed by that group”.
Ordinary committees
20. The regulatory and other committees are the “ordinary committees” of the council.
In 202-21 the annual meeting established the following:





Appointments committee
Planning committee
Audit, governance and standards committee
Corporate parenting committee.

21. The proportionality is based on the total number of seats compared to the overall
allocation of seats each political group has on the council. As the Labour Group
has an overall majority on the council, it has been allocated a majority on each
committee.
22. Council assembly is exercising a matter reserved to it in Part 3A (4) of the
constitution to establish committees. It is for council assembly to agree the
committees it wishes to establish, to set the total number of seats and allocate
them to the committees numbered 1 to 4 in the Table 2 in paragraph 4 above.
Appointments committee
23. The appointments committee determines appointments to posts of chief officers,
chief finance officer and monitoring officer and also acts as a panel for the
purpose of advising council assembly on matters relating to the dismissal of the
head of paid service, the chief finance officer or the monitoring officer as
prescribed by the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations
2001 (as amended).
24. At least one member of the cabinet shall serve on the appointments committee.
Audit, governance and standards committee
25. The audit, governance and standards committee provides independent
assurance of the adequacy of the council’s governance arrangements,
independent scrutiny of the council’s financial and non-financial performance,
has oversight of the financial reporting process of the council and ensures that
its members and co-opted members maintain high standards of conduct and
requires such authorities to adopt a code of conduct for their members.
26. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA's) guidance
(Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities, 2005) states that

6

37

although audit committees are not mandatory, "Audit committees are an
essential element of good governance". It goes on to say, “Good corporate
governance requires independent, effective assurance about the adequacy of
financial management and reporting. These functions are best delivered by an
audit committee, independent from the executive and scrutiny functions."
27. No more than one member of the cabinet may be a member of the audit,
governance and standards committee and no cabinet member may chair the
committee. The chair may be a deputy cabinet member, as this role does not
include the exercise of any delegated powers.
28. No more than one member of the overview and scrutiny committee may be a
member of the audit, governance and standards committee and no member of
the overview and scrutiny committee may chair the committee. In 2020-21, no
members of the cabinet sat on the audit, governance and standards committee.
Overview and scrutiny committee
29. The overview and scrutiny committee (OSC) is the coordinating scrutiny body
and appoints a number of scrutiny sub committees. It questions cabinet
members and can "call-in" decisions taken by the cabinet, individual cabinet
members, decisions on executive functions and key decisions taken by chief
officers.
30. OSC co-ordinates councillor calls for action and scrutiny of health, crime and
disorder, considers requests for scrutiny reviews and approves scrutiny work
programmes. It receives and comments on reports from scrutiny subcommittees, and reviews overview and scrutiny procedures.
31. The committee can also appoint joint committees with other local authorities.
32. The overview and scrutiny committee is not an ordinary committee, but it is one
to which the proportionality requirements apply. Scrutiny commissions will be
established by the overview and scrutiny committee at its first meeting and it will
consider the allocation of places on the commissions including members who
are not part of any political group.
33. Council assembly can agree an allocation that is disproportionate, provided no
member votes against this.
34. The overview and scrutiny procedure rules provide that the overview and
scrutiny committee will consist of the chair, vice chair and the chairs of the
scrutiny commissions provided that the proportionality rules are not
compromised. Each political group is permitted to nominate members who are
not cabinet members should it be necessary to maintain proportionality and/or if
there are fewer chairs of scrutiny commissions than places on the overview and
scrutiny committee.
35. The overview and scrutiny committee and any commission which scrutinises the
council’s education functions will contain in its membership four voting education

7

38

representatives in addition to its councillor members, comprising one Church of
England, one Roman Catholic Church and two parent governor representatives.
36. No member of the cabinet shall serve on any scrutiny committee.
Health and wellbeing board
37. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 enables the local authority to arrange for
any of its functions to be exercised by the board should it so wish. The health
and wellbeing board was first constituted by council assembly on 27 March
2013. The board will not have the power to perform any of the functions given to
the health overview and scrutiny committee, and it will itself be subject to
overview and scrutiny as a committee of the council. Members of scrutiny
committees who are members of the health and wellbeing board should not be
involved in the scrutiny process if the health and wellbeing board undertakes
executive functions, which is then subject to scrutiny, as this may create a
conflict of interests. The proportionality requirements do not apply to the health
and wellbeing board.
38. It will be for the leader of the council under the ‘strong leader’ model to decide
whether any executive functions should be delegated to the board. Until such a
decision is taken, the board will operate in accordance within the council’s
existing decision-making framework and normal council budget setting
processes.
39. The health and wellbeing board must include six statutory members which are:







At least one councillor, who will be (or be nominated by) the leader
The director of adult social services of the local authority
The director of children’s services of the local authority
The director of public health of the local authority
A representative of local healthwatch
A representative of the clinical commissioning group.

40. The proposed membership of the board is set out below:











Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and
Education
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing
Opposition Spokesperson for Health (Southwark Councillor)
Chief Executive Officer of Southwark Council
Strategic Director of Children’s and Adults’ Services
Director of Public Health of Southwark Council
NHS South East London Clinical Commissioning Group representatives
x2
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust representative
Community Southwark representative (Voluntary Sector)

8

39








King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (Kings Health Partners)
Representative
Independent Chair of Partnership Southwark (Partnership Southwark
representative)
South London and Maudsley (SLAM) NHS Foundation Trust (King’s
Health Partners) Representative
Healthwatch Southwark Representative
Southwark Headteachers Representative
Voluntary Sector Representative

Note: The health and wellbeing board membership is reviewed periodically.
This is to ensure that the right partners are represented on the board. Any
proposed change to the membership will be put forward to the health and
wellbeing board for agreement.
41. All members of the health and wellbeing board are subject to Southwark's Code
of Conduct for elected members when acting as a member of the board and will
be subject to declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests. Consequently, it is
recommended that substitutes should not be permitted at meetings of the
committee.
Multi-ward areas
42. The boundaries of the multi-ward areas reflect the borough’s communities as far
as possible.
Table 7: Multi-ward areas divided by geographical areas
Multi-ward area
North-west
North-east
West-central
East-central
South

Electoral wards
Borough & Bankside, London Bridge & West Bermondsey,
St George’s and Chaucer wards
North Bermondsey, South Bermondsey, Rotherhithe and
Surrey Docks wards
North Walworth, Newington, Camberwell Green, St Giles
and Faraday wards
Old Kent Road, Peckham, Rye Lane, Nunhead & Queen’s
Road and Peckham Rye wards
Champion Hill, Goose Green, Dulwich Hill, Dulwich Village
and Dulwich Wood wards

Licensing committee
43. Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires that each licensing authority must
establish a licensing committee of at least 10, but no more than 15 members of
the authority. The power to establish the committee rests with council assembly.
Council agreed in December 2004 that the licensing committee should comprise
15 members in order to achieve maximum flexibility and provide a sufficient pool
of members to ensure quorate sub-committees.

9

40

44. There is no requirement in the Licensing Act 2003 that the licensing committee
should be proportionate. Council assembly agreed in December 2004 to
establish the current committee on a proportionate basis.
45. The Licensing Act 2003 makes no provision to appoint reserve members.
46. In accordance with the constitution, a licensing sub-committee with delegated
authority will be established to hear licence applications including Licensing Act
2003, Gambling Act 2005, street trading and other licensing responsibilities
granted by statute. The sub-committee will include members of the licensing
committee with a quorum of three members and a reserve. Sub-committees
shall be summoned as required to deal with any business and the membership
will be based on the allocation process agreed by the licensing committee on 6
December 2007.
Appointment of chairs and vice chairs
47. Chairs and vice chairs may be appointed directly by council assembly or the
appointments may be delegated to the first meeting of the relevant committee.
48. In the case of the corporate parenting committee, it is proposed that the cabinet
member with responsibility for children’s services be appointed chair. This is in
line with the decision of the annual meeting last year.
49. The leader of the council, in accordance with committee procedure rule 8.13,
chairs the health and wellbeing board.
Reserve members
50. The council assembly, committee and overview and scrutiny procedure rules
make provision for the appointment of reserve members to council committees
and to scrutiny committees. There is no provision for reserves on the licensing
committee and the health and wellbeing board.
51. Each political group can appoint reserve members. The number of reserve
members a group can appoint is, with the exception of the overview and scrutiny
committee, planning committee and audit, governance and standards
committee, one less than the number of places the group holds on the
committee or sub-committee. If a political group holds only one place on a
committee or sub-committee, that group may appoint one reserve member.
52. On the overview and scrutiny committee and the audit, governance and
standards committee, the number of reserve members that each political group
can nominate is equal to the number of places each group holds on the
committee.

10

41

Establishment of the council’s panels
53. Council assembly will consider the establishment and composition of the
following council panels. Panels are not required to be proportionate. This is a
matter of local choice for the local authority.


Council assembly business panel – The Mayor chairs the panel and
consists of two representatives from the majority group (one of whom is
the whip) and the whips of the other political groups represented on the
council. The panel acts as an advisory panel to the Mayor on council
assembly matters, including the setting of themes for debate.



Constitutional steering panel – The panel is responsible for reviewing
and recommending amendments to the constitution. It is also responsible
for making recommendations to council assembly for the award of the
Honorary Freedom of the Borough and Honorary Aldermen and to
recommend changes to the members’ allowances scheme. In 2021-22, the
chief whip of the majority group chaired the panel.
In 2021-22, council assembly established a panel with a membership
comprising the group whip and two other members from the majority group
and the whips of the other political groups represented on the council. In
accordance with current practice, groups can nominate a reserve to attend
in the absence of a representative.



Pensions advisory panel – The panel has a composition of three
members, officers, independent advisors and a trade union representative.
The purpose of the panel is to advise the chief finance officer when
performing functions relating to the council’s pension scheme.



Voluntary bodies appointments panel – The panel has a composition of
four Labour and one Liberal Democrat member. The panel will be
responsible for recommending the appointment of charity trustees to
specific Southwark charities.

Council assembly dates
54. A calendar of council assembly meetings for the 2022-23 municipal year was
agreed at council assembly on 23 March 2022. This meeting agreed the council
assembly dates, in accordance with the relevant statutory provision.
Urgency committee
55. On 26 March 2014, council assembly established the urgency committee,
together with planning and licensing (urgency) sub-committees, to function
during the interim period between a municipal election and the annual meeting of
council assembly. The urgency committees will exercise the non-executive
functions of the council, other than those reserved by law to council assembly for
decision, in cases where in the opinion of the chief executive it was necessary to
act urgently. The urgency committees have normally only met to consider issues

11

42

that are time sensitive and cannot wait for the annual meeting to establish the
decision making arrangements. The leader shall exercise any urgent executive
matters.
56. Council assembly on 26 March 2014 agreed that the urgency arrangements
should be as follows:


Urgency committee - The urgency committee will deal with non-executive
functions only that are not reserved by law to council assembly, and are
not planning or licensing applications.
The urgency committee
arrangements comprise the leaders of the two largest political groups
following the borough-wide elections.



Executive arrangements – Executive decisions will be exercised by the
leader (if personally re-elected or his nominee, a relevant cabinet
member). If the leader (or relevant cabinet member) is required to take an
executive decision, because the normal scrutiny arrangements would not
have been established by the annual meeting, executive decisions would
be treated in a similar way to urgent implementation decisions or an urgent
decision outside the budget and policy framework. If the leader is not reelected, the urgency committee shall exercise the executive functions.



Planning and licensing – Separate arrangements exist for a planning
(urgency) sub-committee and a licensing (urgency) sub-committee. Each
licensing (urgency) sub-committee convened to hear an urgent application
would comprise of three licensing members who will be selected using the
current procedure from the pool of re-elected councillors who previously
served on the licensing committee. The arrangements are set out in more
detail in Part 3N of the council’s constitution.

Appointments to Local Government Association (LGA) General Assembly
57. In 2017, the Local Government Association informed the council that it was now
entitled to seven votes and advised that votes can be allocated amongst the
representatives as the local authority sees fit. The LGA encourages local
authorities with three or four representatives to allocate at least one position and
vote to a minority group representative. Council assembly can agree any
combination of representatives and votes:
58. For 2021-22, council assembly appointed three representatives and allocated
seven votes:
Representative
Councillor Kieron Williams
(Leader)
Councillor Rebecca Lury
Councillor Adele Morris

No. of votes
3
3
1

12

Group
Labour
Labour
Liberal Democrat

43

Establishment of sub-committees and commissions
59. Sub-committees for planning, overview and scrutiny and audit, governance and
standards committees will be established at a special meeting that immediately
follows the conclusion of this annual meeting or can be established at the first
meeting of the relevant parent committee. The division of seats will be included
in the reports to the relevant committees.
The below tables are based on the sub-committees and commissions as agreed
by the parent committees in May 2021. The allocations prior to the borough wide
elections on 5 May 2022 are shown in brackets.
Sub-Committee
Planning Sub-Committee
A
Planning Sub-Committee
B
Total
Scrutiny Commissions
Scrutiny Commission 1
(Education and Local
Economy Scrutiny
Commission)
Scrutiny Commission 2
(Housing and Community
Engagement Scrutiny
Commission)
Scrutiny Commission 3
(Environment Scrutiny
Commission)
Scrutiny Commission 4
(Health and Social Care
Scrutiny Commission)
Total

Total
7 (7)

Lab
5 (5)

Lib Dem
2 (2)

7 (7)

5 (5)

2 (2)

14 (14)

10 (10)

4 (4)

Total
7 (7)

Lab
5 (5)

Lib Dem
2 (2)

7 (7)

5 (5)

2 (2)

7 (7)

5 (5)

2 (2)

7 (7)

5 (5)

2 (2)

28 (28)

20 (20)

8 (8)

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers

Held At

Appointment of Leader and Executive
Functions 2018 Report - Council Assembly
24 2021
Establishment of committees and other
constitutional issues 2021-2022 Report Council Assembly 24 May 2021
Agenda and minutes for the following
meetings:
13

Contact

Southwark Council Constitutional.team
Constitutional team @southwark.gov.uk
160 Tooley Street,
London, SE1 2QH

44

Background Papers



Held At

Contact

Licensing Committee - 6 December
2007
Council Assembly 2004 to 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix

Title

Appendix 1

Political Group Leaders, Deputies and Whips (to be
circulated separately)
Nominations for Chairs and Vice Chairs (to be circulated
separately)

Appendix 2

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer
Chidilim Agada, Head of Constitutional Services
Report Author
Chidilim Agada, Head of Constitutional Services
Version
Final
Dated
12 May 2022
Key Decision?
No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments
Comments
Sought
Included
Director of Law and
Yes
Yes (included in
Governance
body of report)
Strategic Director of Finance
No
and Governance
Cabinet Member
No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team

14

No
No
12 May 2022

45

Item No.
3.3

Classification: Date:
Open
21 May 2022

Agenda Item 3.3
Meeting Name:
Council Assembly (Annual
Meeting)

Report title:

Nominations to London Councils Committees,
Greater London Employment Forum, Borough
Lead members,
London Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Common Investment
Vehicle (CIV) Ltd and London Councils Limited
2022-23

Ward(s) or groups
affected:

Not applicable

From:

Proper Constitutional Officer

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That council assembly consider and agree nominations to the London
Councils committees, the Greater London Employment Forum, London
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Common Investment Vehicle
(CIV) Ltd and London Councils Limited, details listed in Appendix 1 of the
report.

2.

That council assembly nominate borough lead members/relevant portfolio
holders for the areas listed in paragraph 9 of the report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3.

The council nominates representatives to serve on the London Councils
committees on an annual basis. The nomination of representatives to the
London Councils committees and forums fall within the terms of reference
of the cabinet. The annual general meeting (AGM) of London Councils is
on 7 June 2022 and the next available Southwark cabinet meeting is 14
June 2022, council assembly is being asked to agree the nominations for
2022-23 in order to appoint members prior to the London Councils AGM.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
Joint committees
4.

The Local Government Act 2000 and regulations enable local authorities
to make use of joint arrangements with other authorities. Under these
arrangements, a “joint committee” can be established in agreement with
other local authorities to promote the economic, social or environmental
well being of the area.

46

5.

In this report the council is invited to make nominations to the following
joint committees:




London Councils Leaders’ Committee (s101 Joint Committee)
London Councils Transport and Environment Committee (Associated
Joint Committee)
London Councils Grants Committee (Associated Joint Committee)

6.

The council is also invited to make nominations to the London Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Common Investment Vehicle (CIV)
Ltd.

7.

Council assembly may only nominate cabinet members as
representatives or deputies to the joint committees. The nominations need
not reflect the political composition of the local authority as a whole. This
is set out in Article 9 on joint arrangements in the council’s constitution.
London Councils advise that the deputies should have some knowledge of
the policy area concerned, can be kept informed of the member body’s
activities and be able to act as substitute if the principal nominee is unable
to attend a meeting.

Greater London Employment Forum
8.

The Greater London Employment Forum acts as the regional employer for
London for those staff employed under the National Joint Council for Local
Government Services. The representative is usually the lead cabinet
member for human resources issues.

Borough lead members
9.

The London Councils Executives who lead on particular policy areas need
to consult and liaise with relevant borough lead members on matters of
major importance and are seeking to identify borough lead member /
relevant portfolio holders (by way of nominations) for the following areas:









Children and Young People / Safeguarding and Schools
Skills and Employment
Housing and Regeneration
Health, Social Care and Adult Services
Arts/Culture, Tourism, Port and Leisure
Crime and Public Protection
Economic Development / Business
Planning / Infrastructure / Development

London Councils Limited
10. The council is required to appoint a representative to the company,
London Councils Limited. The London Councils advise that the borough’s
representative on the Leaders’ Committee is normally appointed unless a
council specifically indicates otherwise.

47

11. All formal London Councils committee and forum meetings are held during
the day on weekdays.
Policy framework implications
12. This report is not considered to have direct policy implications.
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts
13. The council is being invited to nominate to the London Councils
committees, the Greater London Employment Forum and the London
Councils Limited company. The nominations process has no direct impact
on the community.
Climate change implications
14. There are no direct climate change implications arising from this report.
Legal implications
15. There are no specific legal implications.
Financial implications
16. There are no direct resource implications in the context of this report.
Consultation
17. Consultation is being undertaken with the Mayor, Group whips and
finance officers.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
Correspondence from
London Councils

Held At
160 Tooley Street
London
SE1 2QH

Contact
Chidilim Agada
constitutional.team@south
wark.gov.uk

APPENDICES
No.
Appendix 1

Title
Nominations to London Councils Committees, Greater
London Employment Forum, London Councils Limited
Company, London Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) Common Investment Vehicle (CIV) Ltd.

48

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer
Chidilim Agada, Head of Constitutional Services
Report Author
Chidilim Agada, Head of Constitutional Services
Version
Final
Dated
12 May 2022
Key Decision?
No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES
Officer Title
Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and Governance
Yes
Yes (included in body
of report)
Strategic Director of Finance and
No
No
Governance
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team
12 May 2022

APPENDIX 1
NOMINATIONS TO LONDON COUNCILS COMMITTEES, GREATER LONDON
EMPLOYMENT FORUM, LONDON COUNCILS LIMITED
Name

London
Councils
Leaders’
Committee
(S.101 Joint
Committee)

Remit

The London Councils main decision-making
forum. It sets policy and takes decisions on the
latest developments affecting London local
government.

Member Status

Council
Representative

No. of Places
to be filled

Notes

1 representative and
up to 2 deputies

Representative
usually Leader
of the Council,
but another
cabinet member
can be
nominated.

London
Councils
Transport
and
Environment
Committee
(Associated
S.101 Joint
Committee)

The Transport and Environment Committee
(TEC), provides a range of operational services
such as parking and traffic appeals, the London
night-time and weekend lorry ban, the Freedom
Pass and Taxicard schemes. TEC aims to
ensure that London boroughs' concerns and
best practice are taken fully into account in the
development and implementation of the whole
range of transport and environment policies
generated by government departments, the
European Union, and the Mayor of London. The
committee deals with a wide array of issues,
including congestion charging, CCTV camera
traffic enforcement, waste, air quality and public
protection.

Council
Representative

1 representative and
up to 4 deputies

Representative
usually cabinet
member for
transport and /
or
environmental
issues.
Representative
and deputies
must be
members of the
cabinet.

49

Representative
and deputies
must be
members of the
cabinet.

Name

Grants
Committee
(Associated
Joint
Committee)

Remit

London Councils invests in voluntary
organisations on behalf of all the London
boroughs. The funding is provided by the
London Boroughs Grant Scheme. The
operation of the scheme is managed by the
grants committee which comprises
representatives from the 32 London Boroughs
and the Corporation of London.

Member Status

Council
Representative

No. of Places
to be filled

Notes

1 representative and
up to 4 deputies

Representative
must be a
cabinet member
preferably with
responsibility for
partnerships
with the
voluntary
sector.

Greater
London
Employment
Forum
(GLEF)

The purpose of the GLEF is to provide a forum
where London employer and employee
representatives can meet to discuss and debate
employment matters of concern to the London
authorities and their workforces and, where
appropriate, recommend areas/opportunities for
regional agreement and working.

Council
Representative

1 representative and
1 deputy

Representative
expected to be
cabinet member
for human
resources
matters.

London
Councils
Limited

Each borough is required to appoint a
representative to the company, London Councils
Limited.

Council
Representative

1 nomination

The borough’s
representative
on the Leaders
Committee is
normally

50

Representative
and deputies
must be
members of the
cabinet.

Name

Remit

Member Status

No. of Places
to be filled

Notes

appointed and
will be unless a
borough
specifically
indicates
otherwise.
NOMINATIONS TO LONDON LGPS COMMON INVESTMENT VEHICLE LTD (“LONDON CIV” or “LCIV”)
Remit

Member Status

No. of Places
to be filled

Notes

London Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
(LGPS)
Common
Investment
Vehicle (CIV)
Ltd.

A Collective Investment Vehicle for London
Local Authorities (LLA) Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds, which delivers
broader investment opportunities and enhanced
cost efficiencies than LLAs can achieve
individually and overall better risk adjusted
performance. The person nominated will also
be the nominated person who will have power to
act for the local authority in exercising its rights
as a shareholder of the ACS Operator.

Shareholder
Representative

1 representative and
up to 2
deputies/alternates

Usually the
chair of the
Pension
committee or
equivalent
committee.

51

Name

COUNCIL ASSEMBLY AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) (FULL LIST)
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23
NOTE:

Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to
Virginia Wynn-Jones Tel: 020 7525 7055

ONE COPY TO ALL UNLESS OTHERWISE
STATED

Copies

To

Councillors (1 each)
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Leo Pollak
Councillor Sandra Rhule
Councillor Martin Seaton
Councillor Andy Simmons
Councillor Cleo Soanes
Councillor Kath Whittam
Councillor Kieron Williams

12

Press

Electronic Versions (No hard copy)
All other councillors

Southwark News
South London Press

Copies

by email
by email

Group Offices
Aine Gallagher, Labour Group Office
Pavle Popovic, Liberal Democrat
Group Office

Officers
Eleanor Kelly/Althea Loderick
Duncan Whitfield
Doreen Forrester-Brown
Chidilim Agada
Caroline Bruce
David Quirke-Thornton
Michael Scorer
Sangeeta Leahy

by email
by email

by email
by email
by email
by email
by email
by email
by email
by email

Constitutional Team
(Copies to Virginia Wynn-Jones, 2nd
Floor, Hub 2, Tooley Street)

8

Others
Matt Dean, Grant Thornton
Ground floor audit office, Tooley
Street

by email

Total:

20

Last updated: May 2022

